1969 Annual Meeting

Minutes of the 1969 Annual Business Meeting of the American Political Science Association

First Session, Wednesday, September 3, 1969 New York Hilton Hotel President David Easton, presiding The Meeting was called to order by the Presiding Officer at 4:45 p.m.

Chairman of the Constitutional Revision Committee, Mr. Wildavsky, moved the adoption of the amendment to the Association's Constitution, Article IX on amendments, proposed by the Council (included as item II.A. 1 of the Agenda):

Resolved that Article IX be amended to read as follows: (adding the italicized language and deleting the bracketed language), and that Article VII, Section 1, be brought into conformity with such action.

1 Amendments to this Constitution [shall] may be proposed by the Council or by fifty (50) members of the Association [and adopted by a majority vote of the members present at any regular or special meeting of the Association. Ten members may propose amendments to this Constitution. Such proposed amendments shall be referred to the Council for consideration and by them referred to the Association for its action thereon at]. The Council shall transmit all proposed amendments to the next Annual Business Meeting [with such recommendations as the Council may see fit to make] and may make recommendations on those amendments originating outside the Council.

Mr. Wildavsky offered an amendment to the amendment, substituting "forty percent" for "one-third" of the voting membership necessary to support a Constitutional amendment at an Annual Business Meeting to require a mailed ballot on the amendment. The substitution of "forty percent" was approved by voice vote. The main motion, the amendment to Article IX, was then adopted by voice vote.

Mr. Wirt, a Member of the Council, moved the adoption of the amendment to Articles V and VII on election of officers, proposed by the Council (included as item II.B.1 of the Agenda):

Resolved that Article V, Section 1, be amended to read as follows (adding the italicized language and deleting the bracketed language) and that Article VII, Section 1, be brought into conformity with such action.

1 The elective officers, except the President, shall be chosen by [a majority] vote of the members of the Association attending the Annual Business Meeting, a quorum being present, provided that whenever there is a contest for any elected office or offices such be conducted by mail ballot of the entire individual membership. In the latter event the Executive Director shall distribute ballots within thirty (30) days following the Annual Business Meeting and under such other conditions as the Council may prescribe, and he shall count only ballots returned within thirty (30) days following distribution; each contested election shall be determined by a plurality of those voting on the particular office; if the number of nominees for the set of vicepresidencies or for Council membership exceeds the number of offices constitutionally to be filled, all such nominees shall appear on the mail ballot, members shall be entitled to vote for a number equal to the number of offices in the set, and the nominees ranking highest in the poll, in a number equal to the number of offices, shall be declared elected. The President-Elect shall automatically succeed to the office of President upon the completion of the President's term, or upon the occurrence of one of the contingencies provided for in section 3 of this Article. The terms of elective officers, except members of the Council, shall extend for one year [viz.] measured from the end of the program of [one] the Annual Meeting [to the end of the next], except that an officer's term shall in no event expire until his successor assumes office. The terms of members of the Council shall extend for two years, similarly calculated, and one-half shall expire each year.

It was moved that this amendment be referred to the Constitutional Revision Committee.

A motion to table the referral motion was defeated by voice vote.

The referral motion was defeated by a vote of 370 – 281.

An amendment to the main motion, adding a Section 2, was offered:

This amendment shall take effect at the close of the 1969 Annual Business Meeting.

The previous question having been moved and agreed to, the amendment to the main motion was defeated by a show of hands.

An amendment abolishing the Nominating Com-

mittee of the Association in future elections was offered, and ruled out of order by the Presiding Officer on the grounds that the proposed amendment concerned a different subject.

The ruling of the chair was appealed, and the previous question having been moved and agreed to, the ruling was sustained by voice vote.

A motion to recess was defeated by voice vote.

The previous question having been moved and agreed to, the main motion amending the Constituiton, Articles V and VII, was adopted by voice vote.

It was moved that the Meeting recess for one hour and a half, and resume at 8:30 p.m. The motion was adopted, and the Meeting recessed at 7:05 p.m.

Second Session, Wednesday, September 3, 1969 New York Hilton Hotel President David Easton, presiding

The Meeting was called to order by the Presiding Officer at 9:00 p.m.

Mr. Huntington, representing the Ad Hoc Committee for the Popular Vote Amendments, moved the adoption of the amendment to Article VII and VIII on adoption of resolutions, proposed by the Ad Hoc Committee (included as item II.C of the Agenda):

We propose the following amendment to Article VII, paragraph 1 of the Constitution to become effective immediately upon adoption by mailed ballot of the membership (adding the italicized language):

Article VII, Amendment II

The membership of the Association duly assembled in the Annual Business Meeting or in a special meeting duly called resolves policy questions brought to it, and may confirm, revise, or repeal the action of the Council, the Executive Committee or any officer. Whenever any such actions of those present and voting are contested by twenty percent or more of those present and voting, such actions shall be submitted for approval to the entire membership by a mailed, secret ballot under conditions prescribed by the Council and shall be determined by a majority of those voting by mail.

Article VIII shall, therefore, be changed to conform

to this amendment and shall read as follows (adding the italized language):

Article VIII: Resolutions

All resolutions shall be referred to the Council for its recommendations before submission to the vote of the Association at its Annual Business Meeting. Notice of this provision shall be given to the members of the Association in advance of the Annual Meeting.

Whenever any such actions of those present and voting at the Annual Business Meeting are contested by twenty per cent or more of those present and voting, such actions shall be submitted for approval to the entire membership by a mailed, secret ballot under conditions prescribed by the Council and shall be determined by a majority of those voting by mail.

Mr. Sorauf, a Member of the Council, moved on behalf of the Council that the amendment be referred to the Constitutional Revision Committee. The previous question having been moved and agreed to, the motion for referral was adopted, 367 – 344.

Mr. Rothman, initiator of an amendment to Article VII on adoption of resolutions, moved the adoption of his amendment (included as item II.D.1 of the Agenda):

Proposed for addition at end of Article VII, paragraph 1

Further, upon petition of five per cent or more of the full membership of the Association, any proposed amendment to the Constitution of the Association or any decision taken at the Annual Business Meeting or by the Council, shall be submitted for approval to the entire membership under conditions prescribed by the Council, except that all such decisions shall be determined by a majority of those voting.

Mr. Sorauf, a Member of the Council, moved on behalf of the Council that the amendment be referred to the Constitutional Revision Committee. The referral motion was adopted by voice vote.

Mr. Kling, a Member of the Council, moved the adoption on behalf of the Council of its Resolution on Academic Freedom (included as item III.A.1. of the Agenda):

1969 Annual Meeting

Whereas, resolutions and correspondence on the topic of academic freedom have been addressed to the Council and Officers of The American Political Science Association:

Whereas, the membership of the APSA is mindful of the continuing importance of American colleges and universities remaining as centers of independent inquiry and criticism in a time of social crisis and political polarization;

Whereas, the Association maintains a profound concern for the conditions under which so many of its members teach and study;

Whereas, in accordance with Article II, Section 2, of the Constitution of the APSA, the Association may adopt resolutions in support of academic freedom;

Therefore, be it resolved that the 1969 Annual Meeting of the American Political Science Association:

- 1 reaffirms the 1947 endorsement by The American Political Science Association of the 1940 Statement of Principles on Academic Freedom and Tenure of the American Association of University Professors;
- 2 calls upon Departments of Political Science and all college and university authorities to refrain from the application of political and ideological criteria in the recruitment and promotion of political scientists;
- 3 expresses opposition to the investigation of campus political activities by governmental authorities and to proposals designed to penalize institutions and individuals by the withdrawal of governmental financial aid;
- 4 urges governmental authorities to leave to the faculties, student bodies, administrations, and trustees of the colleges and universities the resolution of campus conflict;
- 5 directs the President of The American Political Science Association to appoint a committee to make a thorough inquiry into the meaning, current status, and prospects for academic freedom for both faculty and students with particular attention to (A) situations where pressures from any sources establish a climate of intimidation leading to restriction of academic freedom, (B) the responsibilities of administration, students, and faculty to

prevent such restriction, and (C) the feasibility of the administration of sanctions by The American Political Science Association against violators of academic freedom;

6 authorizes the Executive Director of The American Political Science Association to communicate, both in writing and in oral testimony, the contents of this Resolution to governmental bodies and officials; and

7 refers to the committee herein authorized all other resolutions proposed to the 1969 Annual Meeting of The American Political Science Association on the subject of academic freedom.

The Presiding officer pointed out that adoption would preclude consideration of other resolutions on the same subject (included as items III.A.4-5. of the Agenda):

Proposal of the Department of Political Science, Yale University, submitted by Robert Lane Resolved: that the (Yale) Department of Political Science request the Council of the American Political Science Association to direct the President of the Association to appoint a committee to investigate the meaning, current status, and prospects for academic freedom for both faculty and students with particular attention to (1) situations where pressures from any sources establish a climate of intimidation leading to restruction of academic freedom, and (2) the responsibilities of administration, students, and faculty to prevent such restriction.

Proposal by Sanford Levinson
Resolved, that the Executive Council of the
American Political Science Association establish
a commission on the relationships between
American universities and police and other internal
security agencies of the various levels of government, with its inquiry to include, but not be limited

A The extent of both overt and covert police activity on campus, including infiltration by secret police of constitutionally protected groups, and the consequent effects of such activity on the integrity of the university community and the freedom of political inquiry.

B The extent of university cooperation with various congressional and state legislative committees investigating campus unrest, including the supply of membership lists, etc., to such groups, and

the consequent effects of such activity on the integrity of the university community and the freedom of political inquiry.

Be it further resolved, that the Association provide financial backing to the commission for the hiring of a full-time executive assistant ,as well as any other assistance deemed necessary by a majority of the commission, up to a total of \$50,000. The commission, on its part, is mandated to prepare its report for the 1970 convention, together with any resolutions it deems appropriate.

An amendment to the Resolution was proposed which would add to Section 3 the Association's opposition:

... to the keeping as well as the turning over of files or other information on the political views and activities of students and teachers to private or governmental investigatory agencies by university administrators.

The amendment was adopted by voice vote.

An amendment to the Resolution was proposed which would add a clause D to Section 5:

and (D) linkages between dangers to academic freedom on the one hand and serious threats to political freedom in the wider community on the other, since the freedom of public life is in the last analysis indivisible.

A further amendment to the Resolution consisting of a new Section 8 was ruled out of order. The amendment adding the above language to Section 5 was adopted, 310 – 251.

An amendment to the Resolution was proposed which would add a Section 8, in which the Association would urge:

... the International Political Science Association, of which the APSA is a corporate member, to adopt a similar statement of academic freedom for all its member associations, with particular reference to the Soviet Union and the peoples' democracies.

The amendment was ruled out of order on the basis of being a main Resolution itself.

The previous question was called, but the Presiding officer noted that under the Rules of Procedure a speaker on both sides of a Resolution must be

heard if a member desires to speak.

A motion to adjourn *sine die* was defeated by voice vote.

After speakers on both sides were heard, the previous question was agreed to.

A motion to suspend the rules to take up the Report of the Nominating Committee was interposed, and defeated by voice vote.

A procedural motion was offered to vote on the main Resolution as a whole rather than ad seriatum, which was adopted by voice vote.

The main Resolution was adopted as amended, by voice vote.

A motion to suspend the rules to take up nominations was offered. The Chairman of the Association's Committee on the Status of Women objected, but the Presiding officer ruled the motion was not debatable. The motion to suspend was adopted, 277 – 243, and the Meeting proceeded to take up nominations.

A motion to recess until 10:00 p.m. Thursday was offered and defeated by voice vote.

Mr. Livingston, representing the Nominating Committee, offered nominations for offices as follows:

President-Elect, Robert E. Lane; Vice-Presidents, Grant McConnell, William Riker and Robert E. Ward; Secretary, Thomas R. Dye; Treasurer, Francis E. Rourke; Members of the Council for two-year term, Samuel P. Huntington, Henry S. Kariel, John H. Kessel, Lewis Lipsitz, John Meisel, Jewel L. Prestage, Robert H. Salisbury, Ellis Waldron.

Sanford Levinson, representing the Caucus for a New Political Science, offered nominations for offices as follows:

President, Christian Bay; Vice-Presidents, David Kettler, H. Mark Roelofs, Alan Wolfe; Secretary, Paul Minkoff; Treasurer, Robert H. Clarke; Members of Council for two-year term, Henry Kariel, Lewis Lipsitz, Jewel Prestage, Tobe Johnson, Phillip Green, Theodore Becker, Alex Gottfried, William Connolly; Member of Council for one-year term, Walter Goldstein.

Claude Hawley, representing the Ad Hoc Com-

1969 Annual Meeting

mittee for a Representative Slate, offered nominations for offices identical with the Nominating

Committee with the following exceptions for Members of the Council:

two-year term, Herbert McClosky and Alan Sindler instead of Lewis Lipsitz and Henry Kariel; one-year term, Tobe Johnson.

Mr. Jones, representing the Black Caucus, offered a nomination for Member of the Council with two-year term, Tobe Johnson. The Conference for Democratic Politics declined to offer nominations. Mr. Farrel nominated James Elden for Member of the Council, two-year term. Mr. Jones amended the previous nomination of the Black Caucus to include William P. Robinson, Member of the Council, one-year term. The Presiding officer noted that the Association's Nominating Committee chose not to offer a nomination for the one-year term Council Membership.

A motion that the Meeting be recessed until 10:00 p.m. on Thursday was adopted by voice vote at 12:15 a.m.

Third Session, Thursday, September 4, 1969 Hotel Commodore President David Easton, presiding

The meeting was called to order by the Presiding Officer at 10:00 p.m.

Mrs. Milburn, Chairman of the Committee on the Status of Women, moved the adoption of the resolution of the Council on the Status of Women in the Profession (included as item III.B on the agenda).

Be it resolved:

- 1 that the APSA support an active recruitment program, especially in any scholarship and fellowship program in which it participates, and actively take special steps to expand the number of places that are occupied by women;
- 2 that the APSA, especially at its conventions, provide for more active participation of women political scientists in offices, committee assignments, convention panels, and other programs and activities of the Association:
- 3 that these and similar programs, which create opportunities for women in our profession and encourage women to seek them, be continued until

some reasonable parity between men and women in the profession is achieved.

Miss Klotzburger moved the withdrawal of the Caucus for a New Political Science proposal on the Status of Women and offered an amendment to the Council resolution on the Status of Women to be paragraph four as follows:

4 that the APSA, especially at its conventions, provide generous facilities by which members can organize on problems of women political scientists.

The Presiding Officer proposed that barring objection the Caucus resolution on the Status of Women be withdrawn. There being no objection it was so ordered.

Miss Stiehm of the Women's Caucus proposed an amendment to the Council proposal on the Status of Women to be paragraph five as follows:

5 that the APSA disapprove of discrimination against women in admittance for study, awarding financial support, academic employment and consideration for promotion; and publicize the information about specific instances of such discrimination.

Mr. Baker moved to refer the amendments to the Council for consideration and possible submittal to the Committee on the Status of Women for sympathetic consideration.

It was moved to table the motion to refer.

The motion to table the motion to refer was carried by voice vote.

The Presiding Officer then ruled the motion to table (already passed) out of order because, according to parliamentary procedure, it tabled the main motion as well as the motion to refer. The vote on the motion to table was set aside and the meeting returned to the pending business, the motion to refer.

The previous question on the motion to refer having been moved and agreed to, the motion to refer was defeated by voice vote.

A motion was made to delete the last clause of the proposed paragraph five to the resolution.

The previous question was moved and agreed to and the motion to delete was defeated by voice vote.

The amendment to the resolution known as paragraph four was adopted by voice vote.

The amendment to the resolution known as paragraph five was adopted by voice vote.

Miss Steinmo moved to adopt a resolution

1) that the American Political Science Association reprimand the management of the Commodore Hotel for following a policy of discrimination against women, 2) that the American Political Science Association investigate the possibilities of bringing suit against the management of the Commodore Hotel for having violated the Civil Rights Act, and further, 3) that the APSA resolve that they never again in the future will use the facilities of the hotel that follows a policy of discrimination against women.

The Presiding Officer ruled the motion out of order.

It was moved to suspend the rules in order to permit the offered resolution.

The motion to suspend the rules was carried by a show of hands.

The motion on discrimination against women was reintroduced.

The Presiding Officer ruled the motion unconstitutional on the basis of Article VIII of the Constitution

On a point of parliamentary inquiry the Presiding Officer was requested to rule part three of the motion on discrimination against women amendment as constitutional.

The Presiding Officer ruled part three as constitutional.

The previous question was moved and agreed to and part three of the motion on discrimination against women was adopted as paragraph six of the proposed resolution on the Status of Women by voice vote.

The resolution on the Status of Women as amended by paragraphs four, five, and six was adopted by voice vote.

The Presiding Officer recognized Mr. Levinson to present the resolution of the Caucus for a New Political Science on the APSA Congressional

Distinguished Service Awards (Item C.1 on the agenda).

Mr. Levinson moved a substitute motion "that the (APSA Congressional) Distinguished Service Awards be immediately abolished."

Mr. Mansfield moved that the substitute motion and the main motion (not moved) be referred to the Council with a view of reconsideration of the whole policy, and perhaps the liquidation (of the awards), and then an orderly arrangement with the original donor.

The motion to refer the substitute motion was defeated 233 to 204.

The previous question was moved and agreed to.

The substitute motion was adopted by a show of hands.

A motion to adjourn was moved and rejected.

The Presiding Officer called for a vote to bring up Item III.E on the agenda as the next order of business; it was adopted.

Mr. Greenberg, the sponsor of Item III.E, the obligations of scholars to subjects of research, moved its adoption.

Resolved:

that the American Political Science Association urges all scholars conducting research in ghetto communities to redirect a major portion of all royalty payments received as a result of that research back to the ghetto by contributing to minority self-help organizations, businesses, and cooperatives.

The Presiding Officer announced that the Council recommended that the resolution on the obligations of scholars be referred to the Committee on Ethics.

Mr. Jones offered two amendments. The first amendment consisted of a request to the Association to instruct its Constitutional Revision Committee to take whatever steps that are necessary to make it possible for the Association to exploit its moral and intellectual authority fully in influencing the outcome of public policy issues.

The second amendment consisted of a set of six proposals to be referred to the Committee on the Status of Blacks.

1969 Annual Meeting

- 1 We demand that the APSA support and finance in political science an extensive exchange program among Black colleges and universities, especially between schools with fully-staffed departments and under-staffed departments.
- 2 We demand that the APSA establish a special fund for Black faculty research.
- 3 We demand that the APSA use it influence to provide tangible support for the creation of an Institute of Black Politics to be housed at a Black University.
- 4 We demand that Black representation on the Executive Council of the APSA be expanded beyond the current Black tokenism.
- 5 We demand that the APSA create an administrative position at the level of Associate Director to be filled by a Black person who will be concerned on a continuing basis with the problems of Black people in the profession.
- 6 We demand that the APSA sever its relationship with any company or firm discriminating against Blacks in any form.

It was moved that the rule of the Presiding Officer to allow amendments to the motion, be tabled on the basis of Article VIII of the Constitution; the motion to table was rejected.

An amendment was offered to direct "the agencies to which these matters have been referred to report back to the 1970 Annual Business Meeting."

The Presiding Officer ruled in response to a parliamentary inquiry that the pending business was whether to refer the Obligations of Scholars Resolution and proposed amendments to appropriate Committees for further consideration not whether to adopt them.

The previous question was moved and agreed to.

The motion to refer the resolution on the obligations of scholars and amendments was adopted by voice vote.

It was moved to adjourn. The meeting was adjourned sine die at 1:45 a.m.

1970 NSF Register

The Association has continued its participation in the National Science Foundation Register of Scientific and Technical Personnel. The Association conducts the survey for political science, which is one of several professions which are part of the Register. One of the main objectives of the Register project is to obtain information on the profession for use by individual scholars, departments, institutions and the Association in studying and planning for political science. Salary information is held in strict confidence and is released only in aggregate statistics. No information is available for commercial purposes.

Questionnaires for the project were designed by the NSF in cooperation with the Association's Advisory Committee. The questionnaires were sent out February 1, with those for individuals previously registered preprinted in part. The cooperation of all members of the Association is urged by the Advisory Committee. The Committee is composed of Karl Deutsch, Harvard University, Chairman; Elmer Cornwell, Brown University; Heinz Eulau, Stanford University; Barbara Hinckley, University of Massachusetts; Tobe N. Johnson, Morehouse College; Harold D. Lasswell, Yale University; Frank Munger, Florida State University; and Austin Ranney, University of Wisconsin. The Association's Register Supervisor is Mrs. Carolyn Ecker.

Information from the 1968 Register has appeared over the past year in *P.S.* and will continue to be used for comparative purposes. The 1970 questionnaire was accompanied by a Request for Additional Information on respondents' racial/ethnic identification for the Association's committees which are seeking information on the makeup of the discipline and profession.

The definition of a professional political scientist to be used for the 1970 Register, proposed by the Advisory Committee, is: "A Ph.D. in political science; or a master's degree in political science plus one year of professional experience; or two years graduate work in political science and one year of professional experience; or substantial professional achievement in political science as evidenced by contribution to the professional literature."

Association Permissions Policy

The Association has announced new policies for requests for permission to reprint articles appearing in Association publications. Previously, the Association referred those requesting permission to reprint to the author of an article, stating that his permission was required to reprint. With the increasing number of such requests, however, and changes in publications market practices, new policies were adopted with the following provisions.

- 1 The author of an article to be reprinted is free to give or deny permission, or to impose conditions, fees, or a share of royalties.
- 2 The Association, upon receiving a request to reprint, informs the requester that a detailed response will be forthcoming after the Association contacts the author or authors. At the same time, it informs the author of the request and asks him to complete a form, noting whether or not permission is given and the conditions under which it will be given.
- 3 A response is then made to the person requesting permission to reprint, informing him of the author's wishes. A normal fee specified by authors is \$100. The Association also requires a \$50 fee for each article or major portion thereof for commercial use. This includes world rights.
- 4 The Association then receives checks from the requester and forwards payment to the author.
- 5 Annual Meeting panel papers may be reprinted contingent on the permission of the author.
- 6 For short passages of an article, or for reprinting purposes other than commercial such as for class-room or conference use, neither a fee nor the author's permission is required.

The Association's policies are in conformance with the principles of the Committee on Professional Ethics Advisory Opinion Number One on the subject of reprinting.

Report On The Selection of Nelson W. Polsby as the New Managing Editor of the American Political Science Review

On November 14, 1969, the present Managing Editor of the American Political Science Review submitted his resignation to President Karl W. Deutsch. The letter said, in part, "A word seems in order about the timing of [the resignation]. In my discussions with then-President David Truman I agreed to undertake the editorship for a period of three to five years. The transition period began in July, 1965, and the first issue published under my direction was that of March, 1966. Accordingly, I am currently in my fifth year of service and feel that I have fulfilled my agreement with Dave. Quite aside from this, however, it has always seemed to me that a fairly frequent rotation of editors is healthy for the journal (and the editors) and that five years is a reasonable maximum tenure."

The Constitution of the Association (Article VI, Section 1) provides: "The . . . Managing Editor of *The American Political Science Review* shall be appointed by the Council, after it hears the recommendation of the President. [He] shall have [a term] to be fixed in each case by the Council; and [he] shall be eligible for reappointment."

At its meeting of December 4-5, the Council established a Search and Screening Committee to assist President Deutsch in considering candidates for the new Managing Editor. The Council stipulated that the Committee be composed of the President as Chairman, President Elect, Managing Editor, three members of the Council, and one member of the current Editorial Board. To the four appointive positions President Deutsch named Herbert McClosky, University of California, Berkeley; Joseph L. Nogee, University of Houston; Vernon Van Dyke, University of Iowa; and Robert E. Ward, University of Michigan.

The Council also directed that a letter be sent immediately by the Executive Director to all department chairmen advising them of the vacancy and asking for their suggestions and nominations for filling it. This letter was mailed from Washington on December 8, and a total of twenty-two replies were received in time to be considered by the Committee. The Council directed the President to recommend a person for the editorship at its next meeting.

Six of the seven Committee members met in Cambridge, Massachusetts, on December 23. Professor Ward was unable to attend but communicated his views to the President in advance of the meeting.

At the meeting the Committee reviewed all the persons – some ninety-four names in all – who had been suggested to them. Several names were eliminated from further consideration because of information, gained from informal soundings, of their wishes not to be considered.

For evaluating those remaining, the Committee agreed upon the following main criteria. First and foremost, the new Managing Editor should be committed to encouraging the best work done by any and all of the different approaches to political analysis now used or emerging in the discipline; he or she should not be dedicated in any way to promoting any particular approach over the others. The new editor should be a scholar of established reputation. He or she should have editorial talent for evaluating and improving manuscripts as well as administrative talent for managing the journal's office and communications. The editor should already have demonstrated his possession of these talents in some way – e.g., by having edited another journal or a volume of essays, or by having acted as editorial advisor for a publisher. The editor should have shown ability both to apply high standards impartially in deciding what to publish and to help authors to present their work in the clearest and most readable form. The editor should be widely familiar with the profession's active scholars, both those older and established and those younger and rising, in all the nation's regions. He or she should be knowledgeable in American Government and Political Theory, since a majority of the manuscripts submitted are in these fields; but it would be highly desirable for the editor also to have come competence in Comparative Politics and International Politics. And it would also be desirable for the editor to have some competence in related disciplines and some experience in interdisciplinary research and writing.

After agreeing on the foregoing criteria, the Committee proceeded to consider the ninety-odd remaining nominees. After much discussion the number was reduced to a "short list" of six. On a secret ballot each Committee member then ranked the six names in his order of preference. The preferences on the six ballots were combined into a composite ranking, and the Committee agreed that the intervals among the top names were sufficiently large to request the President to present the first name to the Council for its approval.

At the meeting of the Council in Cambridge on January 14 President Deutsch explained the Committee's criteria and procedures and expressed the members' regret that only one of so many excellent nominees could be chosen. He then presented the Committee's first choice: Professor Nelson W. Polsby of the University of California, Berkeley. After some discussion the Council unanimously approved the President's recommendation and Professor Polsby was named the next Managing Editor of the *Review* for a term of five years. He has since accepted the appointment, and will assume its full duties in early 1971.

Austin Ranney

New Address for New Manuscripts for the American Political Science Review After June 1, 1970

Beginning June 1, 1970, the *Review's* Managing Editor Select, Professor Nelson W. Polsby, will assume all responsibility for referring and making decisions on all newly submitted manuscripts and for deciding on manuscripts referred but not decided on prior to June 1. Accordingly, after June 1, 1970 all new manuscripts and all correspondence concerning manuscripts not then decided upon should be sent to:

Professor Nelson W. Polsby, Managing Editor Select American Political Science Review Department of Political Science University of California, Berkeley Berkeley, California 94720.

Each manuscript should be accompanied by an abstract of up to 200 words briefly describing the article's contents. All manuscripts and abstracts should be submitted *in duplicate*. They should be double-spaced and may be in typed, mimeographed, hectographed, or other legible form. Footnotes should appear at the end of the manuscript, not at the bottom of the page.

Since manuscripts are sent out anonymously for editorial evaluation, the author's name and affiliations should appear only on a separate covering page. All footnotes identifying the author should also appear on a separate page.

State and Local Government Internship Program

The Association's State and Local Government Internship Advisory Committee has announced 14 grants for 1970–71 under a program sponsored by the Ford Foundation. The Committee is chaired by Charles B. Hagan, University of Houston. Other members are Paul L. Beckett, Washington State University; Franklin L. Burdette, University of

Maryland; Chester B. Earle, American University; Thomas A. Flinn, Ohio State University; and Donald G. Herzberg, Eagleton Institute.

The Committee made 14 grants, ten of which were renewals. Receiving grants were University of California, Los Angeles, Columbia University, University of Michigan, University of Minnesota, University of California, Davis, University of California, Santa Barbara, Case Western Reserve University, Florida (University of Florida-Florida State University), Indiana University, University of Maryland, University of Tennessee, University of Utah, Vanderbilt University, and Washington University (St. Louis).

The grants are made for the purpose of supporting graduate internships at the state and local level, to provide recipients the opportunity to conduct research and observe the conduct of government.

Parties Report Reprinted

The Report of the Committee on Political Parties of the Association of 1950, Toward A More Responsible Two Party System, has been reprinted by the Johnson Reprint Corporation. The report originally appeared as a Supplement to the American Political Science Review, Volume XLIV, Number 3, Part 2 (September, 1950).

The Report has become one of the often-quoted works in the literature of political parties, and has come to represent a view of party responsibility which has been critically examined since the Report appeared. Because it is cited and referred to so often, its new availability in inexpensive form will contribute to its use in classroom assignments and individual study.

Cost of the reprint is \$3.50, from Johnson Reprint Corporation, 111 Fifth Avenue, New York, New York 10003.

European Flights

For the eleventh successive summer, the Association is arranging two flights to Europe in 1970. Flight A will leave New York June 10 for London, and return September 7. The A Flight will be by Pan American and will cost \$245. Flight B will leave New York for Paris August 1 on Pan American and will return September 7. The cost for Flight B will be \$270. Flights are open only to members of the Association and their immediate families. For further information, write, Director, Summer Flights in care of the Association.

Cumulative Index Published

An updated edition of the *Cumulative Index to the American Political Science Review* has been published by the Association in cooperation with University Microfilms. The index was edited and the program designed by Kenneth Janda, Northwestern University, based on the previous edition which he edited in 1964. The new index covers Volumes 1 to 62 of the *Review*, for the years 1906–1968. The index is a KWIC index, "keyword in context," which has been redesigned to give the user all the information he needs to find an article in "one stop." Assisting Janda in the publication were Donald Dillaman, Richard R. Greenfield and Jeffrey Krend, all students at Northwestern.

Price for the index is \$6.50, a relatively low price due to the cooperative efforts of Professor Janda and his assistants, University Microfilms and the Association. For copies, send \$6.50 to University Microfilms, Ann Arbor, Michigan 48106. Members at educational institutions are urged to remind their libraries to order the Cumulative Index.

IPSA Travel Grants

The Association has received a grant of \$10,000 from the National Science Foundation to assist American political scientists in travel to the International Political Science Association Congress in Munich, Germany, August 31 to September 5, 1970. Grants are limited to travel costs.

Application forms are available from the Association office. The deadline for receipt of applications will be June 1, 1970. An Association committee will make the grants and notify individuals soon after that date. For information, write to Travel Grants, IPSA Congress in care of the Association.

APSA Group Flight to IPSA Congress

A group flight has been arranged for Association members traveling to the Eighth World Congress of the International Political Science Association. The Congress will be held in Munich, August 31 to September 5, 1970. The group flight will leave from Kennedy International Airport, New York, August 22 and will return September 7. The fare will be \$245 on Lufthansa Airlines. For Information, write Director, Summer Flight Programs in care of the Association.

Program for the 1971 Annual Meeting of the American Political Science Association

The 67th Annual Meeting of the American Political Science Association will be held in Chicago at the Conrad Hilton Hotel, September 7-11, 1971. The Program Committee is listed below. The members of the Committee and the Program Chairman welcome suggests from members of the profession on specific papers, specific panels, or on the general structure of the program. We would be happy to have ideas for innovation; we would be happy to be reminded of tradition we have slighted. If you have suggestions or comments on the program, please communicate to one or more of those listed below. It is important to have these communications early. More definite plans for the meetings will be taking shape in the fall.

Program Chairman: **Sidney Verba**Department of Political Science, University of Chicago

- I. Research Areas (No distinction is made between American politics and Comparative politics. Panels will deal with either or both.)
- A. Political Belief Systems and their Formation
 Dennis Sullivan, Department of Government,
 Dartmouth College
- B. Technology and Politics

 Todd La Porte, Department of Political Science,
 University of California, Berkeley
- New Modes of Policy Analysis
 Patrick Crecine, Department of Political
 Science, University of Michigan
- D. Law and Social Change
 Herbert Jacob, Department of Political Science,
 Northwestern University
- E. Conflicts, Groups and Party Alignments

 David Kovenock, Department of Political
 Science, University of North Carolina
- F. Urban Politics
 Joel Aberbach, Department of Political Science,
 University of Michigan
- G. Art as Politics

 Claire Rosenfield, Department of English,
 Brown University
- H. International Relations and Organization Joseph Nye, Department of Government, Harvard University
- Political Development: New Directions Warren Ilchman, Department of Political Science, University of California, Berkeley
- J. Public Administration: The Administration of Social Services

Paul Puryear, Department of Political Science, Fisk University

II. Philosophy, Theory and Method

- K. Ethical Theory Richard Flathman, Department of Political Science, University of Chicago
- L. Formal Theory

 Gordon Black, Department of Political Science,
 University of Rochester
- M. Problems of Measurement and Method Lester Milbrath, Department of Political Science, State University of New York, Buffalo

III. Political Science and Public Policy

- N. The Impact of the Social Sciences on Society: A Retrospect on Recent Major Policy Issues Graham Allison, Department of Government, Harvard University
- O. The Impact of the Social Sciences on Society:
 Prospects for the Major Issues of the Future
 Murray Edelman, Department of Political
 Science, University of Wisconsin

IV. Political Science: A Self-Evaluation

- P. Political Science as a Vocation

 Merle Kling, Department of Political Science
 Washington University of St. Louis
- Q. Teaching Political Science
 G. Bingham Powell, Department of Political Science, University of California, Berkeley

APSA Committees

Members of Association Committees are appointed by the Presidents of the Association. All members are invited to correspond with the Chairmen of Committees concerning the subjects of their Committee's concerns.

Constitutional Revision Committee

Aaron Wildavsky, Chairman, *University of Cali*fornia Berkeley

Sandra G. Bogner, University of Florida – Graduate Student

Richard F. Fenno, Jr., University of Rochester
Alex Gottfried, University of Washington
Michael Haas, Northwestern University
Charles V. Hamilton, Columbia University
Robert E. Hawkinson, University of Chicago –
Graduate Student

Donald G. Herzberg, Eagleton Institute of Politics
Herbert Jacob, University of Wisconsin
Avery Leiserson, Vanderbilt University
John D. Lewis, Oberlin College
Walter F. Murphy, Princeton University
James W. Prothro, University of North Carolina
Victor G. Rosenblum, Reed College
Rudolph J. Rummel, University of California,
Berkeley

Judith N. Shklar, *Harvard University* Sidney Verba, *University of Chicago* Kenneth N. Waltz, *Brandeis University*

Committee on the Status of Blacks in the Profession

Paul L. Puryear, Chairman, Fisk University
Russell L. Adams, Federal City College
Twiley W. Barker, Jr., University of Illinois
Samuel D. Cook, Ford Foundation
C. Vernon Gray, University of Massachusetts –
Graduate Student

Tobe N. Johnson, Morehouse College
Mack H. Jones, Atlanta University
Robert E. Martin, Howard University
Lois B. Moreland, Spelman College
Frank L. Morris, M. I. T. – Graduate Student
Michael J. Parenti, University of Illinois
William P. Robinson, Sr., Virginia State College
Harry M. Scoble, Jr., University of California, Los
Angeles

Nathaniel P. Tillman, Jr., Delaware State College Alex Willingham, University of North Carolina Maurice C. Woodward, Federal City College

Program Review and Planning Committee

Frank J. Sorauf, Chairman, *University of Minnesota*

Samuel P. Huntington, *Harvard University* Henry S. Kariel, *University of Hawaii* Robert E. Lane, Yale University, ex officio Francis E. Rourke, Johns Hopkins University Herbert J. Spiro, University of Pennsylvania

Editorial Board of P.S.

James David Barber, Chairman, Yale University
Betty Glad, University of Illinois
Barbara A. Hinckley, University of Massachusetts
Henry S. Kariel, University of Hawaii
Martin Kilson, Harvard University
Philippe C. Schmitter, University of Chicago

Committee on the Status of Women in the Profession

Josephine F. Milburn, Chairman, Simmons College Peter Bachrach, Temple University Philip E. Converse, University of Michigan Warren F. Ilchman, University of California, Berkeley Marian D. Irish, American University Suzanne Keller, Princeton University Katherine M. Klotzburger, Rutgers University, Newark

Joyce M. Mitchell, *University of Oregon*Jewel L. Prestage, *Southern University*Susanne Hoeber Rudolph, *University of Chicago*Victoria Schuck, *Mt. Holyoke College*

Committee on Finance

Francis E. Rourke, Chairman, *Johns Hopkins University*

Gordon E. Baker, *University of California, Santa*Barbara

Rupert Emerson, Harvard University
Matthew Holden, University of Wisconsin
John R. Raser, Western Behavioral Sciences
Institute

Committee on Professional Ethics

Vernon B. Van Dyke, Chairman, University of Iowa Christian Bay, International Political Institute, Oslo David Fellman, University of Wisconsin Carl J. Friedrich, Harvard University Ernst B. Haas, University of California, Berkeley Matthew Holden, University of Wisconsin Michael H. Leiserson, University of California, Berkeley

Theodore J. Lowi, *University of Chicago* James W. Prothro, *University of North Carolina*

Committee on Scientific Information Exchange

Carl Beck, Chairman, University of Pittsburgh Michael Hudson, CUNY Kenneth Janda, Northwestern University Warren E. Miller, University of Michigan Kenneth Prewitt, University of Chicago Albert Somit, SUNY at Buffalo

APSA Committees

Committee on Procedures and Agenda

Ausin Ranney, Chairman, *University of Wisconsin* Joseph L. Nogee, *University of Houston* Robert E. Ward, *University of Michigan*

Committee on Nominations

J. David Singer, Chairman, *University of Michigan* Hayward R. Alker, *M. I. T.*

Frederic N. Cleaveland, *University of North*Carolina

Duncan MacRae, Jr., *University of Chicago* John C. Wahlke, *University of Iowa* Sheldon Wolin, *University of California, Berkeley*

Committee on Academic Freedom

Philip E. Jacob, Chairman, *University of Pennsylvania*

Leon D. Epstein, *University of Wisconsin*Philip Green, *Smith College*Harold Guetzkow, *Northwestern University*C. Herman Pritchett, *University of California*, *Santa Barbara*

James W. Prothro, *University of North Carolina* H. Mark Roelofs, *New York University* Allan P. Sindler, *University of California, Berkeley* James Q. Wilson, *Harvard University*

Committee on Under-Graduate Instruction

William Buchanan, Chairman, Washington and Lee University

Russell L. Adams, Federal City College
William J. Daniels, Union College
Valerie A. Earle, Georgetown University
Theodore B. Fleming, Jr., Wayne State University
William C. Havard, University of Massachusetts
Robert J. Huckshorn, Florida Atlantic University
A. F. K. Organski, University of Michigan

The National Register of Scientific and Technical Personnel

Karl W. Deutsch, Chairman, Harvard University
Elmer E. Cornwell, Brown University
Heinz Eulau, Stanford University
Barbara A. Hinckley, University of Massachusetts
Tobe N. Johnson, Morehouse College
Harold D. Lasswell, Yale University
Frank Munger, University of Florida
Austin Ranney, University of Wisconsin

1970 Annual Meeting Program Committee

Richard L. Merritt, Chairman, University of Illinois Robert R. Alford, University of Wisconsin Hayward R. Alker, Jr., M. I. T. Thomas J. Anton, University of Michigan James David Barber, Yale University Samuel H. Barnes, University of Michigan Samuel H. Beer, Harvard University Davis B. Bobrow, Department of Defense George Robert Boynton, University of Iowa Robert T. Golembiewski, University of Georgia Fred I. Greenstein, Wesleyan University Ernst B. Haas, University of California, Berkeley Wolfram F. Hanrieder, University of California, Santa Barbara

Ole R. Holsti, University of British Columbia
Martin Kilson, Harvard University
Theodore J. Lowi, University of Chicago
Stuart S. Nagel, University of Illinois
Austin Ranney, University of Wisconsin
Bruce M. Russett, Yale University
Judith N. Shklar, Harvard University
Jeremy J. Stone, Council on Foreign Relations
Fellow

Raymond Tanter, *University of Michigan*Nathaniel P. Tillman, *Delaware State College*Jan F. Triska, *Stanford University*

Committee on Pre-Collegiate Education in Political Science

Richard C. Snyder, Chairman, *University of California*, *Irvine*

Paul R. Abramson, *Michigan State University*Fred I. Greenstein, *Wesleyan University*Robert E. Lane, *Yale University*Howard D. Mehlinger, *Indiana University*Jewel L. Prestage, *Southern University*

APSA Award Committees

Woodrow Wilson Award Committee

Bernard Cohen, Chairman, *University of Wisconsin* Harvey C. Mansfield, Jr., *Harvard University* Susanne Hoeber Rudolph, *University of Chicago*

Edward S. Corwin Award Committee

Wallace Mendelson, Chairman, *University of Texas* Harold W. Chase, *University of Minnesota* Sheldon Goldman, *University of Massachusetts*

Leonard D. White Committee

Nelson W. Polsby, Chairman, *University of California, Berkeley*Harvey C. Mansfield, Sr., Columbia University
Norman I. Wengert, *Pennsylvania State University*

Pi Sigma Alpha Award Committee

Gerald H. Kramer, Chairman, Yale University Samuel H. Barnes, University of Michigan William C. Mitchell, University of Oregon

Helen Dwight Award Committee

Burton M. Sapin, Chairman, George Washington University

Richard A. Brody, Stanford University Donald J. Puchala, Columbia University

Administrations Censured by the AAUP

The censured administrations with dates of censuring, are listed below. Reports were published as indicated by the parenthesized AAUP Bulletin citation.

Lowell Technology Institute	Winter 1959, pp. 550-567 April 1960
Alabama State College	Winter 1961, pp. 303-309 April 1962
South Dakota State University Censure was voted specifically on the Board of Regents of Education of the State of South Dakota, and not on the institution's administrative officers.	Autumn 1961, pp. 247-255 April 1962
Alcorn Agricultural and Mechanical College	Autumn 1962, pp. 248-252 April 1963
Grove City College	Spring 1963, pp. 15-24 April 1963
Sam Houston State College	Spring 1963, pp. 44-51 April 1963
College of the Ozarks Censure was voted specifically on the Board of Trustees, and not on the institution's administrative officers.	Winter 1963, pp. 352-359 April 1964
Wayne State College (Nebraska) Censure was voted specifically on the Board of Education of State Normal Schools of the State of Nebraska, and not on the institution's administrative officers	Winter 1964, pp. 347-354 April 1965
St. John's University (N.Y.)	Spring 1966, pp. 12-19 April 1966
Amarillo College	Autumn 1967, pp. 292-302 April 1968
Texas A & M University	Winter 1967, pp. 378-384 April 1968
Arkansas Agricultural and Mechanical College	Winter 1967, pp. 385-390 April 1968
Cheyney State College	Winter 1967, pp. 391-399 April 1968
Southern University and Agricultural and Mechanical College	Spring 1968, pp. 14-24 April 1968
Wisconsin State University at Whitewater	Spring 1968 , pp. 25-36 April 1968
Lorain County Community College (Ohio)	Spring 1968, pp. 49-58 April 1968
Troy State University (Alabama)	Autumn 1968, pp. 298-305 May 1969
Northern State College (South Dakota) Northern State College, like South Dakota State College, is under the jurisdiction of the Board of Regents of Education of the State of South Dakota	Autumn 1968, pp. 306-313 May 1969
Frank Phillips College (Texas)	Winter 1968, pp. 433-438 May 1969
Dutchess Community College (N.Y.)	Spring 1969, pp. 41-49 May 1969
Central State College (Oklahoma)	Spring 1969, pp. 66-70 May 1969
Broward Junior College (Florida)	Spring 1969, pp. 71-78 May 1969
Detroit institute of Technology	Spring 1969, pp. 41-49 May 1969